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Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ng
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MV5HA) , Docket Nos. Assessnent Control
PETI TI ONER BARB 79-327-P 15- 09969- 03002
Processing Division
V.
PI KE 79-113-P 15- 05447- 03004
THE HOKE COVPANY, | NC., Murray Strip M ne
RESPONDENT
DEC!I SI ON
Appear ances: Darryl A Stewart, Esqg., and George Drunmm ng,
Jr., Esqg., Ofice of the Solicitor, U S
Department of Labor, for Petitioner
Byron W Terry, Safety Director, Omensboro
Kent ucky, for Respondent
Bef or e: Admi ni strative Law Judge Steffey

Pursuant to a notice of hearing issued February 22, 1980, a
hearing in the above-entitled proceeding was held on April 3,
1980, in Evansville, Indiana, under section 105(d) of the Federa
M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977.

The consol i dated proceedi ng i nvol ves two Petitions for
Assessnment of Civil Penalty filed by the Mne Safety and Health
Adm ni stration. The Petition in Docket No. BARB 79-327-P filed
March 26, 1979, seeks to have civil penalties assessed for five
al l eged violations of the mandatory health and safety standards
by The Hoke Conpany. The second Petition was filed on May 17,
1979, in Docket No. PIKE 79-113-P by MSHA and seeks assessnent of
a civil penalty for an alleged violation of 30 CFR 71. 107 by The
Hoke Conpany.

On March 20, 1979, counsel for MSHA filed a Motion for
Approval of Settlenent reached by the parties with respect to
Docket No. PIKE 79-113-P. The notion states that respondent has
agreed to pay the full amount of a $34.00 penalty proposed by the
Assessment OFfice for the single violation of section 71.107
i nvol ved in Docket No. PIKE 79-113-P

The Settl ed Case
Docket No. PIKE 79-113-P
The Assessnment Order in the official file indicates that the
respondent produced 384,560 tons of coal on an annual basis and

that 190,935 tons annually are produced at the Mirray Strip M ne
which is involved in

Nos.



~1157

Docket No. PIKE 79-113-P. On the basis of those production
figures, | find that respondent operates a nedi umsized busi ness
and that any penalties which m ght be assessed should be in a
noder at e range of magnitude

There is no evidence in the file or in the Mtion for
Approval of Settlenent pertaining to respondent's financial
condition. In the absence of any evidence to the contrary, |
find that payment of penalties will not cause respondent to
di sconti nue in business.

Respondent does not have a | arge nunber of previous
viol ations and that factor should be considered as a nmitigating
ci rcunmst ance when determ ning penalties.

The specific violation of section 71.107 involved in this
settled case was alleged in Ctation No. 9948403 which stated
that respondent had failed to submt a respirable dust sanple or
a reason for not sanpling one enployee within the time period for
submtting the required sanple. Respondent abated the violation
very quickly by submtting a Mner's Status Change Notice card
showi ng that the sanple had not been submitted for the mner
concer ned because he no | onger worked for respondent.

In such cirunstances, the violation was nonserious, but the
violation was a result of a rather high degree of negligence.
Respondent abated the violation within a nuch shorter tinme than
was al l owed for abatenent in the citation. Considering the
consci entuous effort nmade by the respondent in achieving rapid
conpliance, | find that the Assessment O fice proposed a
reasonabl e penalty of $34.00 for the alleged violation of section
71.107 and that respondent's agreenment to pay the full anount
proposed by the Assessment O fice should be approved.

The Cont ested Case
Docket No. BARB 79-327-P
Citation No. 400126 9/19/78 0O77. 400

Upon conpl etion of introduction of evidence by the parti es,
I rendered the bench decision which is reproduced bel ow (Tr.
38-41):

The contested part of this proceeding, as | previously
i ndicated applies only to the Petition for Assessnent
of Gvil Penalty filed in Docket No. BARB 79-327-P
The issues in any civil penalty case are whether there
were any violations of the mandatory health and safety
standards, and, if so, what penalties should be
assessed based on consideration of the six criteria set
forth in section 110(i) of the Act. Three of those
criteria can be given a general evaluation in nost
cases. As | indicated in nmy opening remarks in this
case, the conpany has not at this point, and | take it,
will not present any financial information and in the



absence of such information, | find that the paynent of
penalties will not cause the conpany to discontinue in
busi ness.
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It has been stipulated that the conpany is subject to
the Act and to the regul ations pronul gated under it. It has
al so been stipulated that the size of the preparation plant
is such that it processes approxi mately 125,000 tons annually
and that the controlling conpany produces about 384, 000 tons
on an annual basis. Those findings support a finding fact
that the conpany is noderate in size and that any penalties
to be assessed should Iikewi se be in a noderate range of
magni t ude

Exhibit 17 in this proceeding is a listing of
viol ations for which penalties have been paid by the
conpany. According to that exhibit, the conmpany has not
previously violated any of the nandatory health and
safety standards alleged in this proceeding. It has
been ny practice to increase the penalty somewhat when
there is evidence before me showi ng that respondent has
previously violated the sane section of the regul ations
which is alleged by MSHA in the case currently being
consi dered. Since respondent has not previously
violated the sections being considered in this
proceeding, the criterion of history of previous
violations will not be used to increase or decrease any
penal ty which nmay be assessed under the other criteria
(Tr. 56).

Turning nowto the criteria of negligence and gravity
and good faith effort to achieve rapid conpliance,
find that the first citation before us in this
proceedi ng, No. 400126 dated Septenber 19, 1978, and
alleging a violation of section 77.400(c), | find in
connection with that particular citation that there was
a violation of section 77.400(c) because that section
does refer to the fact that the guard should extend a
di stance sufficient to prevent a person fromreaching
behi nd the guard and becom ng caught in the belt and

pul | ey.

Considering the criterion of negligence, there has
been testinony that the conpany was aware of the provision
I"ve just referred to and that it considered the guard
that was on the pulley extended far enough to the rear
of the pulley to keep a person fromfalling into it.

It is also indicated by the record that other

i nspecti ons had been nade and apparently the guard that
was on the pulley was considered to be adequate by

i nspectors other then the one who wote this citation
now before us. 1In view of that fact, | find that there
was a very | ow degree of negligence in the occurrence
of the violation.

Fromt he standpoint of gravity, | think that the
violation was only noderately serious because it is a
fact that the evidence shows, particularly Exhibits A
and Al through A4, that there was a facility around the
tail pulley which would keep a person from just wal ki ng



into it upright and the only way that a person would be
near this particular pulley would be for himto stoop
under this construction that surrounded the tail pulley
and then he woul d probably be on the alert just because
of his going into an area |like that.
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But the fact remains that it would be possible for
someone to have his clothes caught in this place and he
could be injured in this pulley fromthe rear. So, based
on the fact that there was noderate seriousness and a | ow
degree of negligence, | find that a penalty of $15.00 should
be assessed for this violation of section 77.400(c).

Ctation No. 400127 9/19/78 0O77.206(a)

Upon conpl etion of introduction of evidence by the parties
with respect to the above citation, | rendered the foll ow ng
bench decision Tr. 55-56):

Wth respect to the alleged violation in Citation No.
400127, | find that a violation occurred because the
operator's witness and the inspector both agree that
three rungs in the | adder were broken. The inspector
does not contest the fact that the operator was not
using the portion of the facility that is here invol ved
at the tine the citation was witten and consequently
it was not being inspected at that time. So, there is
not as great a degree of negligence in that area as
there woul d have been if this were a place where the
peopl e were frequently traveling up and down this
| adder. Additionally, the operator’'s testinmony shows
that there was a | adder and Exhibit B2 shows that there
was a | adder on the opposite side of this particul ar
area cited by the inspector and it is alleged that the
ot her | adder was being used instead of the one that was
cited by the inspector. Additionally, the | adder has
only four rungs and is approximately 5 feet high
therefore, the likelihood of serious injury as a result
of any of the rungs breaking if someone had used the
| adder is less likely than it would be if a great

hei ght were involved. Consequently, | find that there
was noderate seriousness in connection with the
violation. | think that extenuating circunstances in

this instance also justify finding that a penalty of
$15.00 i s adequate.

Ctation No. 400128 9/19/78 0O77.205(e)

Upon conpl etion of introduction of evidence by the parties
with respect to the above citation, | rendered the foll ow ng
bench decision (Tr. 75-76):

My decision with respect to Ctation No. 400128 is
that, as all testinony indicated there was a violation
of section 77.205(e). The conpany, | think, was a
little nore negligent in this instance than it was in
t he previous viol ations, because, even though there was
not normally any use of this particul ar el evated
wal kway, there having been only three uses of it
between the tinme this violation was witten in
Sept enber of 1978 and the present tine, it was known to
t he conpany that there had been an open section |eft



wher e anot her wal kway m ght have been tied into this
wal kway at a future date. And, it was known that there
was a gap of three feet
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Ctat

with
bench

in the handrails. So, | think that since the facility was
constructed with this gap in it that the conpany shoul d

have put in a nore stable handrailing than a rope, assum ng
that the rope was there at the time the citation was witten.
Additionally, there should have been an encl osed handrailing
at the end where the storage sil o existed.

As for the gravity of the violation, there is agreenent
of both the conpany's witness and the inspector that if
a person were to fall fromthis area, it could be a

fatal accident. Therefore, | find that the violation
was serious, and, in view of this |arge degree of
negligence in this instance, | find that a penalty of

$150.00 is appropriate.
ion No. 400129 9/19/78 0O77.206(a)

Upon conpl etion of introduction of evidence by the parties
respect to the above citation, | rendered the foll ow ng
decision (Tr. 94-95):

| have taken additional testinony fromM. Terry to be
sure that | didn't inproperly assess too much in
connection with the alleged violation of section
77.205(e), and after further consideration, | find that
there was at |least a period of time when the conpany
was using the wal kway and | still adhere to the ruling
that | made previously in the anmount of penalty that |
previ ously assessed.

Turning to the one as to which we just had testinony,
which is Ctation No. 400129 alleging a violation of
section 77.206(a), that section provides that |adders
shall be of substantial construction and naintained in
good condition. | find that a violation of section
77.206 occurred because the | adder was rusted, was made
of light materials, and did have an extensive area at
the top which nade it difficult and dangerous to use.
There is evidence fromthe operator's w tness which
showed that at the tine the citation was witten the
silo was not being used because the conpany did not
have orders that required the screening operation that
was involved in that portion of the facility for which
the citation was witten. But the company's w tness had
indicated that the facility was used at some point in
tinme and, therefore, | feel that the | adder shoul d have
been inspected and it shoul d have been put in a proper
and safe condition at the original tinme the facility
was used. | find that there was a rather high degree
of negligence in their failure to do so at that tine.

It woul d have been difficult to negotiate this |adder
O course, as the conpany's w tness has indicated, the
i keli hood of someone going on up the | adder was
somewhat renote but it would have been possible for
soneone to need to do sone mai ntenance work and it
woul d have been possible for soneone to have tried to



negotiate the ladder. He could have fallen because of

t he i nadequate construction. Therefore, |I find that the
violation was serious and since it was a serious
violation with a high degree of negligence, | think a

penal ty of $150.00 is appropriate for this violation
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Citation No. 400130 9/19/78 O77.1707(b)

Upon conpl etion of introduction of evidence by the parties
with respect to the above citation, | rendered the foll ow ng
bench decision (Tr. 106-107):

The final alleged violation in this case was contai ned
in Citation No. 400130 alleging a violation of section
77.1707(b). | find that a violation of that section
did occur. The provision that was violated lists
twel ve itens which are supposed to be included in
first-aid equi pment at a prepartion plant and at m nes.
The paragraph that caused M. Terry and his conpany to
have | ess than the full anount of equi pnment provided
for in paragraph (b) was the section which contains
somewhat anbi guous phraseol ogy which is subject to an
interpretation that a conmpany woul d not have to have a
full conplenent of first-aid equipnent unless there
were ten or nore enployees at the preparation plant. |
can see easily why a conpany might arrive at that
concl usi on and, consequently, | find that there was a
| ow degree of negligence in their failure to have the
equi prent at this particular preparation plant.

Insofar as gravity is concerned, as the inspector has
poi nted out, the violation could be associated with
consi derabl e gravity if someone were to be seriously
i njured and not have the appropriate first-aid
equi prent i medi ately avail able, but in view of the
conpany's good faith in trying to conply with the
regulation, I find that there were extenuating
circunstances in this instance and that a penalty of
$20.00 is appropriate for this violation of section
77.1707(b).

Sunmmary of Assessnent and Concl usi ons
(1) Based on all the evidence of record and the aforesaid
findings of fact, or the parties' settlenent agreenent, the

following civil penalties should be assessed:

Docket No. BARB 79-327-P

Ctation No. 400126 9/19/78 O077.400(cCc)................ $ 15.00
Ctation No. 400127 9/19/78 0O077.206(a)................ 15. 00
Ctation No. 400128 9/19/78 077.205(e)................ 150. 00
Ctation No. 400129 9/19/78 O077.206(a)................ 150. 00
Ctation No. 400130 9/19/78 0O077.1707(b)............... 20. 00

Total Penalties in Docket No. BARB 79-327-P......... $350. 00

Docket No. PIKE 79-113-P

Citation No. 9948403 1/5/79 0O71.107..... (Settled)..... $ 34.00

Total Settlenent and Contested Penalties in This
Proceeding. .. ... ... $384. 00
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(2) Respondent, as the operator of the Murray Strip Mne and
Processing Division, is subject to the Act and to the
mandat orysaf ety and heal th standards promnul gated thereunder.

VWHEREFORE, it is ordered:

(A) The parties' request for approval of settlenment is
granted and the settlenent agreenment submitted in this proceeding
in Docket No. PIKE 79-113-P is approved.

(B) Pursuant to the parties' settlenent agreenent and the
bench deci sion rendered in the proceeding in Docket No. BARB
79-327-P, respondent shall, within 30 days fromthe date of this
decision, pay civil penalties totaling $384.00 as set forth in
par agraph (1) above.

Richard C. Steffey
Admi ni strative Law Judge
(Phone: 703- 756- 6225)



